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l. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

a) Acronyms

AGPO

BOM

CECM

ICPAK

IPSAS

Kshs

PFM

PSASB

Access to Government Procurement Opportunities

Board of Management

County Executive Committce Member

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

Kenya Shillings

Public Finance Managemcnt

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

b) Clossary of Terms
F'iduciary Management The key management personnel who had financial responsibility
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Mokueni County Emergencl, Fund
rt and Financial Statements for the year ended .Iune 30, 2023

The Emergency I'und is established by and derives its authority and accountability fiom the
|aa\ue.1i County Emergency Fund Act, iots *hi.t was gazefled un23,d ocrober,20l5. The Fundis wholly owned by the county Government of Makueni and is domiciled in Kenya.

]he fyd's objective is to enable payments when an urgent and unforeseen need lbr expenditure
for which there is no specific lcgisiative authority ariscs.lhis is as stipulaicd in thc pFM Act 2012,
sections lll to l15.

The Fund's principal activity- is to make payments not budgeted fbr which cannot bc dclayed until
a later financial year without harming thegeneral public intlrest. The paynrent is meant kr alleviate
the damage, loss. hardship or su.{Iering wtrich may be causcd directly'by thc cvent apd the damage
caused by the event is on a small scale and limitei to Makueni countr.

2. Key Entity Information and Management

a) Background information

b) PrincipalActivities

The principal mission of the Fund is to ensure that human life, their welfare and environment are
not threatened.

c) Fund Administration Committec

) Key Manegement team

I H.E Lucy Mulili Chair person

2 Damaris Mumo Kavoi Mcmbcr

., Japheth Musyoka Mang'oka Menrber

4 Nicholas Masila Nzioka

_5
Elizabeth Ndunge Muli

Member

Member

6 Dr. Sonia Nzilani Musyoka Membcr

7 Eng. John Kasyoki Kieti Member

8 Joyce Mutua Mcrnbcr

9 Mentbcr
Faith Musau Member

I Damaris Kar oi
Executive Committee Member -
and Socio-Economic Plannin

Finance

) John Nguni

-t Faith \lusau
Chiel Ofllcer- l:inancial Scrvices

Fund Adrninistrator

IV

Annual

PositionRef I Name

Eng. Sebastian Kyoni
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c) Rcgistcred Offices

P.O. Box 78-90300,
Wote, Makueni, Kenya

f) Fund Contacts

Telephorrc: (254) 020 2034944
E-mail : linance(@makueni.go.ke
Website: www.makueni.go.kc

g) Fund llankers

Central Bank of Kenya
I Iaile Selcrssie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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lllaliueni County Emergency Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year cndcd.lunc 30,2023

1

3. Fund Administration Committee

November 2022 as the CEC
Administration and Special
county govemance.

CPA Damaris Mumo Kavoi - CECM, Finance,
Planning, Budget and Revenue and Head of County
Treasury

CPA Damaris Mumo Kavoi holds a Bachelor in
Business Administration (BBA) (Accounting and
Finance) from Kenya Methodist University (K-EMU)
and a Maslers oI Busincss Administration (MBA) from
the University ol'Nairobi.

She has over 27 years of experience in financial
accounling anti managclncni, budgctilrg, filrarrciai rcportirrg, arrd irr llarragclncnl oi'
donor funded projects in the public Sector. Shc worked as in Accounts cierk at the
University of Nairobi and diligently rose through the ranks to the position of Director
in Charge of Finance in February 2020 to November 2022

-) Japheth Musyokr Mang
Public Service, Public
Programmes.

'oka - CECM, I)evolution,
Participation & Special

I'Ie holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics and
Sociology from the university of Nairobi. He scrved in
the OIIice of Auditor" Gener.al f.rom !q9! to Ocloher
2022.

He joined thc County Govemment of Makueni in
M in-charge of Devolution, public participation, County
Programmes. He has a great wealth of experience in

1

[,ucy is a career administrator with over twenty_ three
(23) ycars' Expcriencc. She served as a Districtbfficcr
and rose to the position of a County Commissioner
overseeing (iovernmcnt policy and development in
three counties.

C]
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Makueni County Emergency Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the vcar ended Junc 30,2023

5

Nicholas Masila Nzioka- CECM. Gender. Children,
Youth, Sports & Social Scrvices

Nicholas Masila Nzioka holds a Bachelor of Science
Degree fiom Jomo Kenyatta liniversity of Agriculture
and Technology (JKUAT). Previously, he served as the

)' \ Rolitical advisor to the Makueni County Govemor, for the
7). period September-October 2022, Assistant / Liaisonl - Officer in the Office of the Senate Minority Whip

(November 2017 - August 2022) and as County Ot}'ice Manager, Otlice of the
Senator, Makueni County (August 2014 - October 2017). He possesses a certificate
in Basic Ivlanagement Skills from Easr and south ^African kianagement Institurc
(ESAMI) Kampal4 Uganda

Ms. Elizabeth Ndunge Muli, MBA, PMP, CISM,
CISA, ITIL - CECM, ICT, Education, And
Internship

Ms. Elizabeth Ndungc Muli has over 15 years of
experience at the intersection ol'technology, busincss,
and policy. Shc holds a Master ol' Business
Administration (MBA) with a major in Opcrations
I\ionn[arvrAnr f.^^. tL. I T-i,,^..ir., ^f \I^:.^l^i If ^^1"^l^-
of Business Inlbrmation Technology (BBI'I') and a
Diploma in Business Infbrmation Technology from

Strathmorc University

Dr Sonia Nzilani Musyoka - CECM, Lands, Urban
Ill^--:-- g- Tl^--^l^---^-. [r--.:-.^--^--. O r_rt:----.^r r.rlrrrruE, Lt lrLvurirlrrrrsrrt, DttlttlrtltttEltl lI \-rrtttatE
Change

Dr. Sonnia Nzilani is the Chairperson of the Konza
Buffer Zone Inter-County .loint Physical and Land Use
Planning Committee and the Founder and CFIO of
Kibwezi (well-wishers) Centre for Sustainability.

She holds a Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Natural
Resources and Life Sciences from University of Natural Resources and Lit'e
Sciences, Australia, Master's degrees in Water and Cloastal Management frorn Cadiz
University, Spain and Environmental assessment and Management from University
of Bologna-ltaly.

She has I I post-graduate short courses tiom Netherlands, Sourh Atiica, USA, Spain.
Israel, Ghana and lreland.

Dr. Sonnia worked u'ith the South Eastem Kenya University tbr 8 years as a lccturcr
and the Head of the Department of Hydrology and Aquatic Sciences. She has more

ears of local and international ex
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Environmental conservation , aquatic science, food security and climate change and
has done over l0 academic publications.

'7 ENG. .lohn
Sanitation

Kasyoki Kieti - CECM, Water &

a

John Kasyoki Kieti is a professional Mechanical
Engineer with 42 years' experience in the water sector.

Previously, he worked with the Ministry of Water and
Development. National Water ind pipeline
Uorporation anci County Uovemment of Makuenr rn
vanous positions across the Country. He is a mcmber

of thc Institute of Engineers of Kenya.

Joyce Mutua - CEC
Livcstock, Fishcrics &

M, Agriculture, Irrigation,
Coopei'ati-"'e Deve!opi-rieii t

She is a seasoned Agriculture and Livestock Value
Clhain Expert with over 20 years professional
practice. Previously, shc worked at Kenya Dairy
Board. a state corooration and Fintrac Inc. while
implementing a United States Agency for
Intemational Development (USAID) funded projcct
and Ets a consultant for various intemational

organizations including Africa Union, FAo, Netherlands Agency for Intemational
Development (SNV) and world Bank funded National egric;ttuiat Rural Inclusive
Gromh Project (NARIGp).

S,he holdsa B.Sc. in Dairy Sciences and rechnology awarded by Egerton University,
Kenya' MIIA in Strategic managemenr and markeiing by Daysiar [niversity, Kenya
l!{ nost Graduate Diploma in International rrade Liwand policy Management by
University oICapc Towrr, Suuiir r\[rica.

9 ENG. Sebastian Kyoni-CECM, Infrastructure,
Transport, Public Works and Energy.

He holds a BSc. in lltectrical and Electronics
Engineering fiom the Jorno Kenyatta University of
Agriculture & Technology and is a member of the Kenva
Society of Electrical and Electronics Engineers.

IIe previously worked with the East African Breweries
Ltd as an h,lcctrrcal and lnstrumentatlon L,ngrneer lor srx

1''ears. Bidco oil & Soap l-td ranzania as an Electrical and Instrumenta tion Engineer
d as a Team Lcader ,ENtbr fir'e vears an
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Mokueni County Emergency Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the ycar ended Junc 30,2023

Mtihwa Srrgar l-i.states .. 'lanztnia as a Proiecl Manager tnr thrrr. year.s in their pipe
manufacturing division, Pipe Industries Company t.td rising to be the General
Manager. He then joined the CG of Makueni as the CECM in charge of roads
Infrastructure, Transport, Public Works and Energy.

l0 CPA Faith Musau-Emergency Fund Administrator
She holds a Bachelor of Commerce (BCOM) degree
(Accounting) from Daystar University and a Master of
Business Administration (MBA) Iinance degree frorn
the Jomo Kenyatta University of Technology (JKUAT).

She is a seasoned Accountant with over l0 years'
experience in Accounting and Finance in both the
private and the public Sector. She is the Makueni
County Emergency Fund administrator and the
Departmental accountant - the Department of Finance.

I
Planning. Budget and Revenue

x
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4. Management Team

L Damaris Kavoi CPA Damaris Murno Kavoi was bom on l0 October
1968 and is the County Executive Committee Mcmber
(CECM) in the Department of Finance Planning,
Budgci ariJ REvEnuc. Sirc iruitis a Bacirciur rn l:'usrncss
Administration (BBA) (Accountin g and Finance) from
Kenya Methodist University (KEMU) and a Masters of
Business Administration (MBA) from the University of
Nairobi

2. John Nguni

I

fr

li

&
l

She is an exceptional Certificd public Accountant with a
great wealth ofexperience ofover 27 years in financial
accounting ?nd management, budgeting, tinancial
reporting,.and in management of donoi fun-<ted projects
in the public sector.

CPA John Nguni was born in 1967 and is the Chief
Officer - Financial Services. I.le holds a Bachelor of
Commerce (BCOM) degree (Accounting) from the
University of Nairobi (UON) and a Masreiof Business
Administration (MBA) Finance degree from The
University of Nairobi (UON).
He is prot'icient in Accounting and finance boasting an
experience of over 32 years in the profession. He has
worked both in the public and private sector.

CPA Faith Musau was bom on 30,1, December, 19g9. She
holds a Bachelor of Commerce (BCOM) degree
(Accounting) lrom Daystar University and a Master of
Business Administration (MBA) Finance degree from
thc Jomo Kenyatta University ol'l'echnology (.lt<Uaf).
She is a seasoncd nccountant with over 9 years,
experience in.Accounting and Finance in both the private
and thc public Sector. Shc is the Makueni iounty
Emergency F und administrator.

3 ['aith Musau

xl



Makueni County Emergencl. Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year cnded June 3l),2023

5. Fund Administration Committee Chairperson's Report

1'he performance of Emergency fund for the year was impressive. We managed to acldress all the
cases which were considered as emergency by thc committee.

Pursuant to Section 164 ofthe Public Finance Managenrent Act. at the end ofeach financial year,
rhe Counly Trcasury shall, for the County (jovemment, consolidate the annual financial statements
in respect of all the county govemment entities in formats to be prescrihed by the Accounting
Standards Board.

The law roquires that these statements are submitted to thc Auditor General, the National 'Ireasury.
the Controller of Budget and Commission t'or Revenue Allocation not latcr than three months after
the end ofeach Financial Year.

The attached Financial Statements which have been prepared in line with the requirements of thc
(PFMA),2012, present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the County Govemmenl of
Makueni for the twelve months' period ending June 30, 2023.

During this period, the Emergency Fund received Ksh.47,232.938/= tiom the County Government
of Makueni. The balance brought forward from the previous year was Ksh. 1.547,8 I l/=. The fund
made payments amounting to Ksh. 32,694,703.00 lbr use of goods and trade payables of Kshs.
5.454.834.00|eaving a balance of Ksh. 10,631,212/=.

As I conclu&, I would like to thank the National Treasury for the support they gave during the
financial year.

The Fund financial statements wer
.,.{ tr.,-...,,- -- r.th h- - ..--!- - - .rn
<u rLr l\u vtuuti ult ! l r-rcluiff iarci'. ZU

Signed

E,ECUTIVE COUUITTEE t{EITBER

CEPT. OF FINA|lCE I PLANNING

DAMARIS UENT OT UAl(UE}iI COUHTY

e forwarded and signed by CEC for Finance, Planning, Budget
23.

'v6t'
COUNTY EXECUTIV E COM ITTEE MEMBER _ FI NANCE. PI,ANNIN(;. BUD(;ET

xll
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Mokueni Coung' Emergency Fund
Ann ual Report and Financial Statements for the vear en dcd June 30, 2023

'l'he flnancial year 2022/23 was characterized by requests for consideration as emergency whichresulted fiom drought and ra.ins which were experiinced i, th" a;;;;y. -l-he 
cases raised wereclassified as disasler since they exceeded the2o/o ofthe revenu. iuir.o by the County. Thistriggered measures to be put in place to take care oftirture disasters in rt,..r"nt they occur.

All cases qualifying as emergency were responded on time to ensure that there is no threat to lossof lives or damage to the environment. To makc payments from the tund, we were guided by thePublic Financ-e Management Act section I 12. The cases paid through the fund could not have beendelayed to a future date and they were only made to alieviate d;;;, lors ana sufrering whichwas directly caused by the unexpected events.

By the close of the financial year some projects.were not complete. This projects budget wascarried forward to the current-year. out of the year's budget of Ksh. 50,000.000.00 only paymentsamounting to Ksh. 32,694,703.00 for use of goods and tride puyutt., oirshs. 5,454,g34.00 weremade.

'l'he lund pertbrmance was better compared to the previous years. The members of the committeecommitted themselves to ensure that the cases raisid were reviewea promitly and approved casesaddressed immediately. T'he success of the fund would not nar" b..n possible without thestakeholder's support.

6. Rcport of Thc Fund Administrator

Signed

CPA I'aith lUusau
I'UND ADMINISTRATOR

ff"f

xlll



Mokueni County Emergenc)' Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended .lune 30, 2023

7. Statenent of Performance Against the County Fund's Predetermined Objectives

Introducdon

Section 164 (2) (f; of the Public Finance Management Acr, 2012 requires that. at rhe end of each
financial year, the Accounting officer when preparing financial statements ol' each County
/-^-.^-----.-. f:.-.:.-, /- ---. .-,-.:.:., :.- r _ -_...r. ,tuovcn-riiielit Li'rtitJ Uoveiiiiiieiii eiiiiii€s iii aulord.rriu€ wriii iirc siarrtiards arrd furrrrais prcscribcd
by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board includes a statement of the county government
entity's performance against predetermined objectives.

The key development objective of the Makueni County Govemmenr limergency fund 2022-2023
plan is to:

a) To enable payments to be made in respect ofa county when an urgent and unforeseen need
for expenditure for which there is no specific legislativc authority arises.

Below we provide the progress on attaining the stated objectivcs:

Progress on attainment of Strategic development objectives

Below we provide the progress on attaining the stated objectives:

Repair
renovation
ECDE

To
access
pre-

enhance
to quality

primary

Increase
enrolment
ECDE

I ECDE
rcnovated

Provision of
relief food to
hunger stricken
areas in Makueni

Building a public
Toilet

EU UUauUtr

To ensure the
aflected are€B

have food for
survival

To
hygiene

promote

Increased access
to ECDE

No loss of lif'e

Presence ofbasic
sanitation facility

Therc w€rs no
loss of life in
areas stricken by
hunger in

Healthy
environment
uncontaminatcd
with human
waste

Food was
distributed to all
the mcmbcrs of
Makueni affected

and
of

r! as

l

t r^ t.,,^-: ^^.,- LrL

I public toilet

Repair
spillway
fencing
dam

ol
and

of the

To enhance
access to water

Enough water
and safe

environment to
the community

No loss of life
due to open water
masscs and dam
breakage

I dam protected

xlv
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

lhe Flmergencv tirnd is esrahlished as ner section I !O of the pFM Act. The tryecutiye rnember of
Finance and Socio economic planning oversees the administration of the fund.

A nine-member committee headed by her Excellency the Deputy Govemor has been cstablishe6
to review and if appropriate approve cases which qualify 

^ "*"ig"n.y. 
The committee is guiJeJ

by thc Makueni cou,ty Emergency Fund Act (20r5) ani pFM A; 20i2.

Payments made tlom the tund are reported to the County Assembly for review and approval within
two months fiom the date of payment as prescribed in the PFM ict 2012. The committee of rhe
Cgynty Assembly which is mandated with oversight of the Fund is the count Assembly Committee
of Finance and Socio- Economic planning.

Requests for consideration under thc Fund are made through the County Treasury with ajustification within the PFM Act. The cases are presented to the committee for deliberation then
back to rhe County'l'reasury for approval withinihe pFM Act 2012.

In the financial year 2022/23 lhe comminee managed ro hold six meeting and approvecl six
emergency cases and rejected four cases. The committee attendance was abovi uu".ugi.

'l'he committee members are appointees of his Excellency the Governor and he has the sole
responsibility to appoint office bearers at any given timc. The term of the committee expires after
every five years, Irlowever the Fund Administrator who acts as the secretariat to the commillee has
unlimited time. This ensures there is continuity in the management of the affairs of the committee.

The fund relays on the broad county service delivery charter to ensure its mandate is achieved. l'he
service Charter is intended to regulate the relationship betwcen customers trnd Makueni County.'l'he charter seeks to attain the below objective.

Mg*,ren! Ceunfi. Emergenc; F*nd
Annual Report and Financial Statemen ts for the yea r ended .lune 30, 2023

o 'l'o create awareness on the t'unctions, vision, mission and core values of cpSB
o To provide intbrmation on:

o Standards ofservice established and expcctations ofcustomers
o Board's commitment lo customers on service delivery
o Riqhts and nhlioations nf (-rrctnrnprc

o Avenues for redress where service levels fall short of standards
o Enhance productivity
r Strenglhen processes and initiatives that prevent malpractices
o Enable the Board serve citizens of Makueni as customers and meet their demands equitably

and !"air!Y
o Ensure timely response to customer needs.

The existing regulations states that a member of the committee may exit fiom service either
through resignation. mental incapacitation or natural attrition. The appointing authority may f'rom
time to time change the membership of the committee to ensure the committee mandate is
achicvcd.

xv
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Mokueni County EmergencS' Futtd
Annual rt and Financial Statements for the ycar ended .Iune 30,2023

Thc roles of the committee are stipulated in the Makueni County Emergency Act 20 I 5. Thcsc rolcs
among others include;

a) Receiving all the emergency requests

b) Vetting the requests submitted for emergencv consideration

c) Approving the emergency requests for funding or budgetary consideration.

d) Advising the county executive on the emerging emergency cases within the county

The Fund Committee members have been sensitized on the Public Financc Management aspects
regarding emergency administration.

The remuneration of the committee is always guided by thc existing govemment circulars and
guidelines as issued by the Salaries and Remuneration Commission liom time to time. 'l'he Countl,
Treasury has made budgetary provision for the administration of the Fund.

The committee members are guided by existing public officer ethics act regarding public service.

xvl
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis

Scctions ll5 of the Prrhlic Finance Management Act, 2015 requires that, at the end ct'each
financial year, the County Treasury shall, not later than three months after the end ofeach financial
ycar. prepare and submit to the Auditor-General, financial statements in respect of the Emergcncy
Fund for that year. The County Executive Committee (CEC) Member for i inance of the Cirunty
Govemtnent is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statemcnts of
Emergency lund, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the fund for and as ar the
cnd ofthe tinancial year ended on June 30,2023.

The CEC Member fbr Finance accepts responsibility for the Emergency fund financial statements,
which have been prepared on the Accrual Method of Financial Riporting, using appropriate
accounting policies in accordance with Intemational Public Sector Accounrintshnd;dr'1irdaS;.

The CEC Member for Finance is of the opinion that the Emergency fund financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of the fund transactions during the linancial year ended :unJlO,
N23,, and of its financial position as at that date. The CEC mcmber for Finance further confirms thc
completcness of the accounting records maintained for the County Govemment which have been
r1r!-ir.r.l ,rirr,- :- rL^ --^-^-^+:^- ^f +L^ n*^--^-^., G,.-J .:-^.. .:^r -.^..__- - -.r!rr\.v ul,\rrr rrr rrrL prlp(rrqrrvrr (,r iir!, r-iaitiEr.iiai ia.iii\i iiniiiiLiai Si6iCijisriis.

The CEC Member fbr Finance confirms that the County Govemment has complied fully with
applioable (iovemment Regulations and the terms of cxtemal financing covenants (where
applicable). and that the County Govemment's funds received during the year under audit were used
fbr the eligible Dumoses for which thev were intended and uere properlv accounted thr Frrrrher the
CEC member for Finance confirms that the County Goverrunent's financial statements have been
prepared in a form that complies with relevant accounting standards prescribed by thc Public
Secbr Accounting Standards Board of Kenya.

During this period, the Emergency Fund received Ksh. 47.232,938/: from the County Govemment
ol Makueni. 'l he balance brought tbrw'ard tiom the previous ye was Ksh. I .547,81 I /=. The fund
made payments amounting to Ksh.32.694,703.00 lbr use of goods and trade payables of Kshs.
5'454,834.00 leaving a balance of Ksh. 10.63 1.212/=. We tunded the renovation of ECDE
classnroms at Mba Primary school and Kiaoni ECDE centre. construction of an ablution block at
Wote town and the repair of Katilini earthdam spillway and Kalandini drift, Lastly, the fund
crrabicd itrr iirc suppiy ui ivlaizc and ixans ro the vuinerabie communiries wirhin the county.
Approval of Emergency fund finencial statements

The Emergencl' tund financial statements
Finance, Planning. Budget and Revenue on

\\'ere approved and signed by the CEC Member for
l Sth nrbcr 20 -t

EXECUTIVE COY IIITTEE [IEIIEER

OE?T, OT TINANCE I PLANNIIIG

GOVER}ITEIII OT UAKI,JE}II COUNTY
0

xvt l

DAMARIS KAI'OL
COUNTY EXECT'TI\'E CO}IMITTEE MEMBER - FINANCE. PLANNING. BUDGET
AND REVENI.'E
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10. Environmental and Sustainabilit-v Reporting

Makueni County Emergency fund supports the County vision by lunding emergencies not
anticipated neither budgeted and which would negatively alfect the environment and wellbeing of
the citizens. The vision entails transformation of the livelihoods of thc citizens guided by over roll
crlr-!nt)/ vision' which is a prosperous r,3!ue L'ased count1,r..,ith r high qualiti,cf !ife.'lhe Celiyeri,
of the transformation agenda is guidcd by key principles and values which are; integrity ancl
accountability; inclusiveness; equity and faimess; patriotism and responsiveness.

l. Sustainability strategr and profile

The County promotes sustainable development through governance refbrms that are founded on
integrity, transparency and accountability. The county has focussed on provision ofoverall policy
development and institutional development and strengthening. This is guided by issue based
leadership, transparency and accountabilitv in management of public resources

2. Environmentat performance

Tlte County is committed to environmental conservation and sustainability. So lar it has put in
place the environment and climate change policy in addition to the Climate Change Fund

Regulations, 2015 that established the Makueni County Cllimate Change l.'und Board responsible

for mainstr€aming climate change in county development processes.

3. Employoe welfare

Makueni Courty has several policies in place that guide hiring of employees.'l'hese include the
County Govemment Act, the Employment Act and the Constitution of Kenya, 2010. Ilvcry eflbrt
is made in ensuring Gender balance and involvement of various stakeholders in the hiring process.
Through the County Public Service Board, the County Government has made tremendous efforl
in improving skills. managing careers, appraisal and reward systems of employees. These includc
Performance Management system, training of staff., formation of Departmental Human Resource
Management Advisory Committees, Appointment of committee to review'the schemes of service
and introdustion of reward system under the performance Management System.

The Coturty Government has also formulated and documented a safety and health policy in
compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007, (OSHA). This is part of County
Service Delivcry manual which addresses pertinent safety and health concerns such as safety and

[realth regulations, fire sat'eq' provisions and insurance cover.

xVlll

Makueni County Emergene, Funtl
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b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations

To guarantee sustainability, the county ensures a cordial relationship with its suppliers/contractors.
The county leadership holds periodic meetings with the contractor and suppliers to sharc on any
concerns and address any emerglng tssues. I he county has estabhshed a county pending Bills
Committee and has ensured that all payments due are promptly paid and tlris has provided
conlidence to suppliers and contractors that they will be paid upon completion of works or delivery
of goods and scrviccs. In addition to ensurc efficiency and effectiveness in payment process. a

Central lnvoice Registry has been operalionalized

c) Responsiblc marketing and advertisement

xlx

-\

4. Market place practiccs

Makueni County Government has made efforts in promoting fairness in the market place as
outlined below:

a) Responsible competition practice.

The county has adopted open contracting in the procurement process as weil as adoptins e-
procurement process. This has greatly enhanced openness and transparency in conducting
procurement. The county govemment has also embraced the AGPO affirmative action aimed at
empowering youth, womcn and persons with disability-owned enterpriscs by giving them more
opportunities to do business with Government.

'l'he cotrntv is in the Process of estahlishing n marketing unit with the responsihility of coordinating
market and markcting linkage as well as market information and intelligencc to empower fiarmers
and local traders to access protitable and lucrative markets fbr thcir products. The county is also
establishing a marketing portal which will be useful in connecting traders and market linkage.

d) Product stcwardship

The county has implemented consumer protection programme whose objective is to safeguard the

business owners and promote fair trade practices. The county through the Department of Tradc,

Industry, Marketing. Tourism and Cooperative inspected and verified 4,885 weights and measures

equipment.
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5.C Eneasemen ts

The an elaborate public participation framework that guides participatory development
county emanating from the village clusters up to the County level. l)uring the
the community has been involved in most of emergency activities conducted by

the

we

I hls was as a result ot'drought which has atlected most areas in the county. Also,
fair representation of the community interests in the county affairs. The Project

have remained fully involved in the implementation of the development
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I l. Report of The Trustees

The Trustees submit their report toqether with the audited linancial statements for the vear ended
June 30, 2023 which show the state ofthe Fund affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Fund include receiving and evaluating cases presented to the
Uomminee tbr consicieration as emergencies. lf they qualrty 

"r "-..g"i","s under the pl.M Act
Sec I12, measures are put in place to alleviate the damage oi sufferin[caused by the event.

Some ol the interventions by the Committee are as follows:

r P',"nh.,cp nf rr.lipf fhnrl

Repair and renovation of ECDE.

o Construction of a public toilet.

o Repair and fencing of an Earth dam.

Rcsults

Thc rcsults ofthc Fund for thc ycar cndcd Junc 30, 2023 arc sct out on pagc I

Trustces

l'he mcmbers ol'the Board of Trustccs who served during thc year are shown on pagc iv to xi

Auditors

l-he Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance with Arriclc
219 o1'lhe C<-rnstiturion ol' Kenya and the Public Audit Act 201 5.

Approva! of Erncrgcncy fund financial statcmcnts

'l'he Emergency fund fin
Finance, Planning, Budget and Revenue on I3

ancial statements were approved and
ih December. 2023 .signed 

by the CEC Member ftrr

tr\l
EXECUTlvt uuHlll l l EE, riLire

OEPT OF FINANCE I PLANNIN G

DAMARIS KAVOI HIIEIIT OF IIAKUENI COUN TY

co N XECI,I
AND RT]VENTIIi

GOVER

xxl
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NakacnlCounll,hnergucy Fand
Annurl rt rnd Fln rnclnl Strlomcnlr for tho onr ondcd Juno

12. Sletcnronl oI lllonogonronlir Rcrponrlhllltlor

Scotion 167 of tho Publlo Flnrnco Managoment Aot, 2012 rcqulru th!t, rt thc ond ofcrch linancial

lcrr, lho Administntor of a Counly Pubtlo lrund orlabllslrcd by rccrion I l0 of thc PpM Acr fir1
pnprn firunohl ctatcmenE fortho Fund ln rccodrncc wlrh tho rtrndrrdr and formrr prcrcribed

by tln hrbllo Seclor Accountlng Standards Boad.

Thc Adminlsrmtor of thc County Publio F:und ls rcsponribtc for the prcpararion and prcsentation of
tlrc F\rd'r fininciat statemcnh, rvhlch Xlvo a lruc and lLlr vicw of thc srotc of aflain of thc Pund for

rad rs at thc cnd oftho ffnorclal ycar ordcd on Junc 30,2023. Thlr rasporuibility includcs (i)

meinuining adcquarc linancial mansgcmalt amsngcments end ensuring that thcsc conlinuc to bc

dEaivc throughout the reporting pcnod; (i) mointaining proper accounting rccords, ntrich disclosc

wlth Easonsble lccurscy at arry tlme thc linanclal position ofthc Fund; (iil) dcsienlss, implonreotiag

ed meinhining irrtcrnal controls rrlcvant to the preparatlon and fair prcscntuion of thc fimncid

stiancns, and cnsring that thcy arc free fmm matcrial misstatcments, whether duc to cnor or

fut$ Cw! safcgurding lhe assels of the Pund; (v) sclccting and apglying appmpriate accounting

polidc$ lnd (vi) making accountitg csimatcs that are reasonablc in thc circurnstances.

xxll

2023

Thc Admiaistntor of thc County Public Fund acccpts responsibility for lhc Fund's fnancial

sEEa.$t$ rvhich bsre b*a prepsrC usiag appropriate sccounting policies tuppond by

reasnrblc and prudcnt judgcmerts and cstimates, in conformity with Intcmational Public Scctor

Ao@uating srandards (IPSAS), and in thc manner requircd by the PFM Acg 20t2 and Malueni

oouty &rcrgcncy Fund Act2015 .TheAdminiscatorof the Fund isof0rc opinion thatthe Fund's

fiaaociel statemants give a tsue and fair vicw of thc statc of Fund's trarsactions during the Eruncial

year codcd Junc 3Q 2023, andof thc Fund's financial position as at thst dalc. Thc Administrator

firficr confirm the complcEncss of thc accounting records maintained for the Fund, which havc

leco nlicd upcn in thrprcparcrion oftlc Ptsfd'c fuanclsl$stemEtts xs $Cl ostltc cdequrcy ofth:

sydcrE of intansl financial contrrol.

In prwrins 0re financial statcmcnls, thc Administraor of rhe county Public Fund has asscssed thc

Fuul'r rbilily to contioue as a going ornccm and rjisclosod, ps spplicable matters rclating to tlre usc

ofgofurgconcembasisofprepararionofthclinancialstatcments.Nothinghascomqtothcattcotion



..)/alreri Cr,.ruf , Erac.ri,.rur1' .fla/
Anuurl nnd lhc ycrr cndcd Junc 30,20?3

of thc Adminisbator to iudicate tllrt thc Fund will not remdr ! going qrnccm for at tcast lhc next

hwlvc months liom thc date of this stolcmcnt.

Appronl of thc linrnchl strtcmcnlr

Thc Fund's financial statcmcns werc approved by the committee on li6 Dcccmbcr. 2023 rnd
signcd on is bchalfby:

rfru
CPA Faith Muau

FT'ND ADMINISTRATOR

xxllt
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MAKUENICOUNTY EMERGENCY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal control, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Managemenl Acl, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Makueni County Emergency
Fund set out on pages 1 lo 47, which comprise of the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net

Reput ofthe Auditor-Ceneral on Makueni County Emergency Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Makueni County Emergency Fund as at 30 June, 2023,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Makueni County Emergency Fund Act,2015 and Public Finance ManagementAct,
2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

lnaccuracies in the Financial Statements

The statement of financial position reflects nil trade and other payables from exchange
transactions balance while the supporting trial balance reflects a balance of
Kshs.5,454,834. The resultant variance of Kshs.5,454,834 has not been explained or
reconciled.

ii. The statement of financial performance reflects surplus for the period of
Kshs.14,538,235 while the trial balance reflects a balance of Kshs.1 ,547,811 resulting
to an unexplained and unreconciled variance of Kshs.12,990,424.

iii. The trial balance and the statement of changes in net assets reflect prior year
adjustment of Kshs.17,622,O71which was explained as expenditure incurred during
the previous year and settled in the year under review. The amount is however,
reflected as a credit instead of a debit for the omitted expenditure to adjust the
accumulated surplus amount. The amount should also have been recognized as a
payable during the previous year.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements
prepared and presented for audit could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Makueni County Emergency Fund
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Report of the Auditor-General on Makueni County Energency Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON
RESOURCES

LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC

lrregularities in Procurement of Relief Food

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services amount of
Kshs.32,694,703, which includes general office expenses of Kshs.25,843,107 as
disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. The amount includes payment for tenders
for procurement of relief food (maize and dry beans). The tenders were awarded to five
(5) suppliers at a total contract sum of Kshs.22,953,040 in November 2022 using direct
procurement instead of a competitive procurement process contrary to the provisions of
Section 91(1) of the Public Procurement and Assets Disposal Act, 2015, which
recommends open tendering as a preferred procurement method for procurement of
goods, works and services.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law while value for money from
the expenditure could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The Standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

I

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Makueni County Emergenqt Fund for the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to sustain services, disclosing as applicable, matters related to sustainability
of services unless Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease
its operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

Report of the Auditor-General on Makueni County Emergency Fund for the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls) 2315 and 2330. The Standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.



I
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in

an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
comnliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that

might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

Report of the Auditor-General on Makueni County Emergency Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to sustain
its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards

FCPA BS

a
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l{. Slrtcmcnt of Financirl Performancc for the }'ear.Entlcd 30rh June 202J

Rcye nue Fronr Non-lhchangc 'f rrrnssctions

Public Coritributions and Donations

17.2ii2.9.18 -r6.400,000

{7,232.938 36'400,000

)

'f otrrl Rcvcnuc

Total Expenses
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Funtl Arlnrinistrator
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Use ofgoods and services 32,694.703 40.495,859
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l5 Stetcrnont nf ['inanni.rl Pnsitinn os at l(|rh f rrnn 1O)1
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Exchan e Transactions

l) ents

'f otal current rssets

Lon Term Receivables tiom Exchan e'l'ransactions J
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i
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2

CuArrent Assets

10.63 1.212 1.547,81 I1I

Invcntories l5
Invcstments in financial asscts l6

t7Ptopcrty. Plant and Fiquipmeut

lntangible Assets r8

Invcstmcnt Property l9
Total non- currcnt asscts

I ,5.{7.8I ITotal Assets lll,63l,2l2

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
23.076.905Trade and Other Payables from Exchange Transactions 20
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Social benefi t liabilities 23

Total current liabilities 23,076,905

Non-Current Liabilities
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Non-Current Emplol ee Benet'it Obligation 22
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Net Assets
I

Ilevolvi l;und

Iteservcs

Total Net Asscts and Liabilities 10,611,,212 1,5,17,81I

^ 
- - l.^- I rr

, r u\. Ut r I Ui!iitJ JUI i u;i/ uei lui r

l'he acc<lunting policies and e
(Ir ire tlrurci
and signed by: G0VEtliU
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to these financial statements folm an integral part
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Fund Administrator
Name: Faith Musau
ICPAK Member Number: 30094

I
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3

i RESTATEI)
I

Note i FY_2022-2023 | rv zozt-zozz



Mo*ueni County Emergency Fund
Annual Reyrcrt and Financial Statements for the year endcd June 30, 2023

16. Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the 1'ear cnded 30rh June 2023

/t?.t11 ,1i\
\-,rle.rr-,rr,

Revaludlofl UBrn

Ilalancc As At Lluly 2022 (21,529,093)

B-cva!uat!on Cair:

The accouoting p'olicies and ernlanatorv notes to these financial staternents lbrm an inteeral nart
of the financial statements. The entity financial statements were approved on l3rh December,2023
and signed by

GONRXUE}{T 08 ilAKUENI COUNN
CHIET OFPICER

FI]VANCIAL SERVICES
8-9o3oo, DIAKL;ElilChief Oflicer -Financi

Name: John Nguni
ICPAK Ntember \umber: 3JJ0

Fund Administrator
Name: Faith Musau
ICPAK Member Number: 30094
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Surplus(Deficit) For the Period (4,0es.8se) (4.095,859)

Irunds Received During the Year

Transfers

Balance As At 30.Iunc 2022 (2 I,529,093) (21,529,093)

Surplusi(Deficit) lbr the Period 14,53 8,235 l{,538,235

Funds Received During the Year

Translers

Prior year Adjustnrents (Note 24) 17,622,07117.622,071

10.(rJl.2lJBalance As At 30.lune 2023 t0,63lJt3
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Annual lle rt and Financial Statements for the year endcd June 30, 2023

17. Statement of Cash Flows for The year Ended 30th June 2023

Reccipts

Public contributions and donations

Iotal receipts 47.232.938 -36.400.000

Fin:rnce coqt

PrccccCs frcm salc ofprcpcfli nlarrt,?r nnrrirrrr-rnrrt

Rclidi rislli tri' trtrr iu w irig.r

Cash flows from operating activities

Transfers from the county government ) 47,232,938 36,400,000

Receipts from othcr opcrating activities

Intcrest received

Pavments

Fund administration expenses

Use of Goods 7 (32,694,703) (3s.041 ,02s)

Other payments ( lrade Payables) 20 (s.4s4,834)

Net cash flows from operatin g activities 25 9,083,401 1,358,975

('ash flows from investin g activities
Purchase ofproperty, plant, equipment and
Intangible assets

Proceeds fiom loan principal repayments

I-oan disbursements paid out

Net cash florvs used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds liom revolving tund receipts

Additional borrowings

Nct cash flow's used in financing activities
Net increase/(dccrease) in cash & cash
Iiquivalcnts 9,093,401 I,358,975
Cash and cash cquivatcnts at I Juli 'l <.1? o11 I OO 01r

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 ,Iune l2 10,631,212 I,5{7,91 I

5

tNote
'-2021-2022

Kshs Kshs
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I
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18. statement of comparison of Budget and Actual Amount. for The period

i0,000,000

.50,000,000

i0.000,000

30,0,f0,000 :i0,000,000

Budget notcs

l ' The changes betwee:r original budgot and final burlget was as resrrlt of reallocati:rn of funds during the financial year

7

":1c_d)
c=(a+b)

30.0.)0.000 20.000,000 47.232.938

30,010,000 20.000,000 {7,232,938

30,0:)0.000 20.000.000 32.694.703

20.000,000

Capitr.l expenditure

A l] l)
Reven ue

Surplus For the Period

Total Expenditure

Transfers From Counly Gort

Finance Cost

Interest Income

Ceneral Expenses

Other income

Total ,lncome

Expenses

32,691,703

I4,539,235

Public Contributiorrs and
Donations

Fund Administration
Expen:;es

2.767.062

f=d/c* I l)0

94o/o

9l'h2,767,062

17,305.29"' 66%

17,305,29'l 66t/"

Description 0ri1 in
budr et

al
tr ctu

I Kshs Krhrs

I
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Makaeni County Emergency Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Slatements frrr the year endctl .Iune 30, 2023

19. Notes to the Financial Statements

l. Generel Information

Makrcdi County Emergency Fund is established by and derives its authority and accountability

fiom Makueni Countv Emereencv Fund Act 2015 s,hich \\,as cazetted on 23'd C)ctoher 2015

The entity is rvholly owned by the Makueni County Govcrnnrent and is domiciled in Kenya.

The entity's principal activity is to make payment not budgeted for rvhich cannot be delayed

unril a leter financial year without harming the general public interest. the payment is meant to

aiicviEic thc ciarnage, ioss, hardship or sufibring which ma1,be causeci ciirectiy by the event;

and the damage caused by the event is on a small scalc and limited to the Makueni county.

2. Stalement of compliance and basis of preparation

The Fund's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with

lnternrtional Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The financial statements are

presientod in Kenya shillings, which is the tirnctional and reporting currency of the Fund. The

accounting policies have been consistentlv applied to all the lears presented. 'I'he financial

statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost. unless stated otherwise. The cash

flow s(atement is prepared using the direct method. 'I'he financial statements are prepared on

accrual basis.

3. Adoption of new and revised standards

(i) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the
year ended 30 .Iune 2023

IPSAS 4l: Financial

Instruments Applicable: l{ January 2023

The objecrive of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users ol financial statements lor their

:rss€ssment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's

fi rtr rre 6rch flns's

IPSAS .ll provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

8



\
Mo*ueni Countl' Emergency Fund
Annual Report and Financiut Statements for the yesr cnded .lune 30, 2023

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Amendments to

Othcr !I'S.4S

resulting from IPSAS

41. Financial

lnstruments

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characleristics ofthe asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single fbrward-looking expected credit loss

r!r!!:!.! !!!:rt :. . . . . . , I : . , . , I . I . , r.. ,r!! fi,.,,,,,,.i,,! i,,. r -,,,-,.-,.. ....L:^,.. ...rv uir iii...iii,i.ii iiiiii iiiiiuiii5 5uijjuui iu

impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope ofthe guidance.

The model develops a strong link between an Entity's risk

managemcnt strategies and the accounting treatment for

instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

Applicablc: l" .Ianuary 202J

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

rcprc:,cltirtiv strcss atrr.l colupurubilit;, o!' thc inlorrnation thut a

reporting Entity providcs in its financial statements about social

benefits.'l'hc information provided should help users of the financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a)'l'he nature ofsuch social beneflts provided by the Entity;

(b) The key features ofthe operation ofthose social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

Applicable: I't Januery 2023

a) A-n:endments to !!'SA-S 5. te updatc thc guidarrcc rclatc.l rc

the components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedgrng and credtt rrsk whrch were lnadvertently omitted

shen IPSAS 4l was issued.

9

Effcctit'e date and impoctStandard



Makueni Counly EntergensSt furrd
Annuel Report and Financial Statements lbrth e year ended June 30, 202J

Other improvcmenls

to IPSAS

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30. to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts rvhich were

inadvertently omitted when IpSAS 4l was issued.

Amencimenrs ro iPSAS 33, to upciare the guiciance on ciassifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IpSAS

which werc inadvcrtcntly omittcd when IpSAS 4l rvas issued.

Applicahle ln January' 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Infitrmation ahout the General

Governmenl Seclon

Amendments tn refer to rhe latesr Svsrem of National Accounts (SNA

c IPSAS 39: Enplolee Bene./its

Now deletes the term compositc social security benefits as it is no

longer detined rn IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29'. Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 202 I IpSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from I't January 2023.

2008)

IPSAS 43 Applicable ld Janua4, )[)J
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. 't-he objective is

to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant infbrmation in a

rnanner that faithfullv renresents those transactions. This information

gires a basis for users offinancial statements to assess thc effect that

i leases have on the financial position, financial performance and

i cashflows of an Entity.
l

The nerv stanciard requires entities to recognise, nteasure anci present

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

l0
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Annual Report and Financial Statements for thc yclr r endcd Junc J0, 2023

IPSAS 44:. Non-

Current Assets Held

lor Sale and

Discontinucd

Operations

Appllcuble ls January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as hcld for sale to be

measured at the lowcr of carrying amount and lair value less costs to

sell and the depreciation ofsuch assets to cease and:

Assets th.r meet the crilcria to bc classitje.C as hcld fbr- ssle to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

slatemenl of fi nancial perlormance.

(ii) Early adoption of standards

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standants in the financial year 2022/2023

ll



Makueni County Entergency Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements firr the year ended .f une 30, 2023

l. Signillcant Accounting Policies

a) Rsvcnue recognition

i. Rwenue from non-exchange transactions

Transferc from other gsvernment enllties

lnterest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The eflective y,ield discounts
estrmaled future cash recelpts through the expected lrte ol the lrnancial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to detcrrnine
interest income each period.

b) Budgel information

'rhe original budget tbr FY 2022-2023 was approved by the county Assembly on 24t1, May,
2022. Subscquent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. l'he additional
appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective
approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly. the Fund recorded additional
a1-,prupt iatiurrs ui' Ksirs 20,ijii0,000 un tirc F'r' 2n22-2iD) butigci ii-riiuwrrrg iirc govcrnirrg
body's approval.

The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the state'ment offinancial performance,
whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were
recast ttrn the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same
basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prcpared on a
comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts.

t2

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are measured at tair
value and recognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash, goods, services and property) if
the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential rclated to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

ii. Reven ue from excbange transsctions

Intorert income



Summary of Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

ln addition to the Basis difference. adiustments to amounrs in the financial statements are also
made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of
the financial statements and the approved budget.

c) Property, plant and equipment

A-!l propcr$, p!ant an'3 equiprncnt ere stated at .:osl !e:,r acculnu!atcrl rlcprcciaLii;n ani!
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. when significant parts of property, plant and 

"qripr.nt are required to be replaced
at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual uri"t, *ith specifmseful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is'performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria arc satisfled. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

d) Intangible Assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cosr. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the excha-nge.
Following initial rccognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amonization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized anJ expcnditure is reflc"cted in
siirplus oi" dcficit in ihc pcrio,J iii 

"r.hicl-, 
tlie expenditiire is iiiciiiic,j.

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

e) Investment property

Makueni County Emergency Fund
Annual Rcport and Financisl Statemen ts for the yea r ended June 30, 2023

lnvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the
time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-
day maintenance of an investment property. Investment property acquired through a non-
exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date of acqrrisition. lnvestment
properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investmcnt
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic bcncfit or servicc
potcntial is expected from its disposal. The difference bctween the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-
rcc1rgnition

l3
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Summar.v of Sisnificant .Accountins Policies (Continuett)

f) Financial instruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition offinancial assets and
financial liabilities. introduces nerv rules for hedge accountins and a neu, imnairment model
lor financial assets. The entity does not have any hedge relationships and therefore thc new
hedge accounting rules have no impact on the Company's financial statements. A tlnancial
instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset ofone entitl, and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition. the entity mea-sures a financial
jlsc-t! !-r!. finr,r,'ial li6la;lit.. :r! it. !lrir. ..r!!!!!. !.!l!!. ,!. ,,,:,,,,. :,, rt,,. ,..,.,. .,f ., fi,,,,,,,.:.,t ....,., ,..i..ii..i' Pir...' iji iiiiiii;i! iia iii! !aiiU Ui U iiii.iiivr.ir di,J!i Ui

Iinancial liability not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue ol'the tinancial asset or linancial Iiability.

Financial essets

Classilication of linancial assets

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, f'air value
through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the
cntity's management model for financial asscts and thc conlractual cash tlorv charactcristics of
the linrncial asset. r\ linancial asset is measured at amortized cosl when rhc financial asser is
held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash l'lows and the contractual terms of the llnancial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash f'lows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstandinS. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assers/ equity il'it is held
within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collccting contractual
cashflows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
princlpal amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus
or delicit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equitv unless
an entity has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial
assets into amortized cost or fair vatue categories for financial instruments. Movements in tbir
value re presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain
criteria being met.

t4
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Financial assets that are held fbr collection of contractual cash flows where those cash florvs
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value
through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that
is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is
rccognizcd in protit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or rmparred. lnterest rncome trom
these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

F'air value tbrough net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
intcrcst, are mcasured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying
amounl are takcn through ncl assets, exc€pt fbr the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplu$deficit.
lntcrcst incnmq frnm the51 fin:rncirl assrlc is inclrrr:led in finance inconc usins r-hc ttlerti,,.,e
intcrest ratc method.

Fair value through surplus or delicit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assetV
eq'-r!11'arc mcasrtrcd at fair valr:c through surp!',rs or dcficit. A- t'usiness tno.lc! rvhcre the errtitl
manages tinancial assets with the objective of realizing cash l'lows through solely the sale of
the assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible
amounts. 'l'rade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An
estimate is nrade ofdoubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the
year end.
f rn nai rrnanl

'l'he entity assesses. on a florward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECt,') associated
with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assetVequity. The
entity recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.

t5

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Continuerl)
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Mukueni County Enrcrgency Fund
Annuel Report and l'inancial Statements for the year ended .Iune 30,2023

Signillcrnt Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financirl liabilities

Classffication

The entity classifies its liabilities as subsequently mcasured at amortized cost except lor
finencial linhilities mensrrrcd thrnrrqh nrofit nr locs

g) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition.'lir the ertent that inventory was received
through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or lor a nominal cost), the cost ofthe inventory'
is its fair valrre nt the d:rte of :rcnrrisition

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,
as follows:

} Raur materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

L F'inished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
iiowever, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or ciepioyeci at no charge or icrr a
nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at thc lowcr oflcost and current replacemcnt
cost.Net realizablc value is the estimated selling price in thc ordinary coursc of opcratiorrs. lcss

the estimated costs of complction and thc cstimatcd costs ncccssary to rnake thc salc, cxchangc.
or distibution. lnventories are recognized as an expense rvhen deployed tirr utilization or
consumption in the ordinarl,course ofoperations ofthe lintit1,.

h) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (lcgal or constructivc) as a
result ofa past event, it is probable that an outl'lorv of rcsourccs crnbodying economic bcnefits
,,,. .-,..,i^- ^.,r-rrti rl ...ill l.- ,-,.,,i,-.1 r...-rtlo tl.-,,1.1i...'ri..,' ,',.,1 .. ..-I:..I.I- - . . t : . t r ' . . A , ' 

. . , , 1..' ,'...,1-

ol'the amount of the obligation. Where the Entity expects some or all ol a provision to be

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 'I'he expense relating to any
provision is presented in the statement of financial performance nct olany reimbursement.

i) Social Benefits

Social bcnefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that

meet the eligibility criteria. ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of
society a.s a whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit

scheme at rhe same rime rhat ir recognises a iiabiiiry. The iiabiiity fbr the sociai benciit scheme

is measwed at the best estimate of the cost (the social bcnctit payments) that thc entity will
incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

l6
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Summary of Significant Accounting poticies (Conrinued)

i) Contingent liabilities

The. Entit.v- does not recogn.ize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingenciesin the notes to the financial statemenis, unless the possibility of an outflow ol- resourcesembodying economic benefits or scrvice potential is remotc.

Cnntingenl nssets

'l'he lintity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details ofa possible asset whoseexistence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain futureevents not wholly within the control of the lintity in the notes to the financial statements.
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that dcvelopments are appropriatelyrellcctcd in thc linarrcial statcmcnrs. ll-it has becorne vinually cenain thar an inliow of
economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can bc measured reliably,thc asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period inrvhich the change occurs.

k) Nature and purpose of reserves

The llntity does not creatc and maintain reseryes in terms of specific requirements.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The [Jntity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting nolicy retrospectivelv. The effectsof changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is
impractical.

m) Employee benelits - Retirement benefit plans

'['hc Entrt,v provicles !'eti!'cment henefits for its cmploy'ees anr! dircctors. t'tcfincd contrlbution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under whlch an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructivi obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employie benefiti rilating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. T'he contributions io funA obligations for-the
payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become
payable.

P."fii"9 benefit plans are post-employ'ment benefit plans other than defined-contriburion plans.
The defined benefit funds are actuarialll' valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method
basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future
contrihtttions on nrorrrrtional hasis to all participating emploveis. The contrihutions and lump
sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

t7
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Summon, of ,Sienificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

n) Foreign currency lransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling ratc ofexchange on
the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are
rennrtod nf thc srlrtrrrrr-nt nf financial nncifir''n rr.nnrtino rlare hv annlvirl.r tlr.. ar',-lrarrnp r.rtp nrr

' -r'' -"''5
that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of'creditors, or liom the reporting
of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period,
are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

o) Borrowing costs

p) Relatetl parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an cntity rvith the ability tr-r oxcrt control
individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vicc versa.
Memhers of kev mnnagement are regnrdr.d nq relnted pnrties nnd cnmprise the directors- the
CEO and senior managers.

q) Cash and cash equivalenls

r) Comparalive {igu res

Bonowing costs are capitalized against qualilying assets as part of property, plant and
equipment. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during rvhich thc asset is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when
construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are chargcd to thc statcmcnt of
fi nancial Jrcrformancc.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, shor.t-term deposits on call
,,-J L:^L1.. l:.,.,:l :-,.^-.-^-.- ...:.L ^- ^-i-:-^! .--^..,-:... ^a.r...-- ...^...r-- ^.. r-^^ ...t.:-r. ^..-urrU rrr5lrr, rrYuru rrrrr,sarrr\.rrlJ vtrrll .rrr vrl6lrl.tl lltalurrr) \-, r trll(rl lll\rllallJ t-rt ll-55, ltlllr.ll <llu

readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignilicant risk ofchanges
in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Clentral Bank of Kenya and at
variouo ommercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes olthese financial
statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short terrn cash imprcsts and advances to
authorisod public oflicers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at
the end ofthe financial year.

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to the required chenges in presentntion

r8



Mtkueni County Entergency Fund
Annual Report and Financi al Stateme nts for the year en dcd June 30,2023

Summory of Signiticont Accounting policies (Continued)

5, Significant judgments and sou rces of estimation uncertainty

Thc preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IpSAS requiresmanagement to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that aftict the reported amountsol'revenues, expenses. assets and riabirities, and the discrosure 
"f ;;;.;;;; riabirities, at theend ofthe reporting period. However, uncertainty about these arrun,ptioni uid estimates couldrcsult in ()utcomes that requirc l ntuteriul adjustnrent to rhc currl,ing uruunt 9[ thc assct orliability atlected in future periods.

a) Estimates and assumptions -
The kcy assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty atthe reprxing date, rhar have a signiiicant risk oicausing a materiai uqu.rr"ni ro rhe carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are desc-ribed below.'l.he Entit!
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financialslatements rvere prepared. 

.llorvever, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
dcvclopmcnts may change due to marker chariges or circumstanc", ;.iri;;;;ond the controrof tht'Entitv. Such chanses are reflected in the assumprions rvhen trrey oclur.'lrsAs 1.140.

b) Useful lives and residuat values

'Ihe uselul lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators toinform potential future use and value from disposal:

) The condition of the asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the Entity

) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes

! Thc naturc of thc pioccsscs in v.hich thc assct is dcploicd

) Availability of funding to replace the asset

D Changes in the marker in relation to the asset

r1 Pi-oyisioiis

There were no provisions for bad debts and obsolete stocks.

t9



Makueni County Enrcrgenq, Fund
Annual Report and i-inancial Statemcnts for the year cndcd June 30, 2023

6. Noles to The Financial Stttements

l. Publlc contributions and donations

2. TrX nsfers frnrl Cnun!).'(_lor.'ernment

Transfers From County Gttvt. .{)perations 47.232.938

Payments By County On llchalf Of 'l-he Entit5,

Unconditional Developmcnt grants

'Iirtal

3. Fines, penaltics and olher levies

4. Interrst income

Intcrr.sl me from Mortgage Loans

lnterest income un BanK Depostts

36.400,000

36,400,000

l)onation Fronr Developmcnt Partners

Contributions From The Public

Totsl

47,232,938

Late Paynent Penalties

Fines

Total

Interest Incorne From Car l-oans

lnterest lncome From Investments in financial
assets

Total I ntercst lncome

20

FY 2M2-2023 FY 202t-2022

I FY 2022-202] FY 2021-2022

FY 2022-2023 i FY 2021-2022



Mrkueni County Emergenq' f urrd
Annual Rcport and Financial Statemen ts for the year ended .lune 30,2023

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

5. Other income

lnsurance Recoveries

Inconte from Sale of Tcnder Documents

'l'otal ()ther lncome

6. E,mployee Costs

Staff Training lixpenses

7. [Jsc ol'(Joods and Serviccs

(ieneral OfIice Expenses 25.843,107

Cuiii'ii ii.icc Alloi; -iic,

Postage And Courier

Printing And Starionerl

Bad debts recovered

Miscellaneous lncome

Salarics And Wages

Stafl'Gratuitv

Social Securitv Contribution

Other (Specity

Total

Loan Processing Costs

Professional Services Costs

Administration Fees

Bank Charges

Elcctricitl And \\'ater Expenses

Fuel And OilCosts 800.000
lnsttnrnce ('rr.ts

2t

I w tozz-zots

i FY 2022-2023

l-K-.h*--
FY 202t-2022

IGhs.
Description



Makueni Count), Emergenc-y' Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the vear ended June 30,2023

Rental Costs

Security Costs

Audit Fees

Provis For Doubtful Debts

Other fund projects 40.495.8596,051,596

J2,694.703

And Communication Expenses

Bank gcs

Social bcrreiii cxpcnscs

Total

8 Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Total

9. Finance costs

10. Gain(loss) on disposal of assets

40,.195,859

Plant and Equipment

lntangible Assets

I

lnterest On llank Overdrafis

Interest On l,oans From Banks

Total

Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible Assets

Total

22

Kshs
n

shK s.

Telephone

I ry zozt-zozzI FY 2022-202J

r i'r Zu2Z-LvZst- --
i IGhs.

l. I aau2 -lttzL
lKshr.

I FY 2022-202J I Fy 202t-2022
---+

j

I
I



Mokueni County Entergenc! Furrtl
Annual Rcport and Financial State ments firr lhe ycar ended .Iunc J0,2023
I L Gain/ (loss) on Fair Value tnvestmcnts

12. Cash antl cash equivalents

Fixcd Deposits Account

Others

Total Cash And Cash Equivalents

nvestments at Fair Value- Lll lnvestments

I
^:....^t..- ^.t--_ r:----- -. rdrr v.lru!- u isi i iiialiriaa asSC

air value - Investment

otal (Jain

Makueni County, Car Loan Acc()unt

Makueni County Mortgage Account

On - Call Deposits

Current Account * Ccntral Bank ofKenya 10,63t.2t2 r.547,81 I

10,6J I,212 I,547,81 I

23

2021-2022

fths

022-2023iFY 2



Makucnl Countl, Emergency Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended .lune 30,202J

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

Detailed analysis of the cash and cash equivalents are as tblk>rvs

b) On - Call De its

c Current Accounl

r 0,63 1.2 r 2

d) Ol hcrs

Gnnd Total r0,63rJr2

13. Reccivables from exchange transactions

Other Exchanee Debrors

Less rment Allowance

Lo 'l'erm Loan Repayments Due

I ,s{7,8r I

q) [ix9d Deposits Account

_lqCity Bank. Etc

Sub- Tolal

Kenya Cornmercial Bank

Sub- Total

Central Bank of Ke a r000268255 1.547.8 | I

Bank B

I0'63r,2t2 t,5{7,8t I

Cash ln l'ransit
Cash ln l land

Sub- Total

Current Receivables

Interest Receivable

Cunent Len Repavments Due

Total Current Receir ables

Total Non- Current Receilables

Non-Current Receivables

Total Receir ables From Erchan e Transactions

24

FY 2022-2021 FY 2021-2022--J

-

Kenya Comnrercial Bank

Equity Bank - Etc.

Sub- Total



Makueni County Entergency Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements fo r the year ended .Iune 30, 202J

Noles to thc Financial Statements Continued

Arlrlitional disclosrrre on interest receivable

Inlercst rcceivable lrom current portion of long-term
loans issued in the currenl year

Current loan ents due

C urrent Fx)rtion of long-term loans issucd in the current

14. Prepavments

15. I nventories

Spare Parls And Meters

I ntercst Receivablc
tl ct,'

I ooans I us0prc years

interest receivable from of long-term loans of
revtous

Accrucd

Cunent portion of lon c{t rsterm loans fronr
Accrued
periods

principal lrom long-terms loans from previous

Prepaid Rent

Prepaid lnsurance

Prcpaid Electricity Costs

()ther l'repayments

'I'olal

Consurnablc Stores

Catering

Other lnvenlories (Specify)

Total lnventories at
Rcalizable Value

The Lower of Cost and Net

25

years

FY 2022-2023 FY 202t-2022

-l

i FY 2022-2023 | rv zozt-zozztrtn

(shs



Mo*ucni Count)' Enrcrgenc! f urrfl
Annuel Report and Financial Statcments firr the vcar endcd Junc 30,202J

Notes to the Finnncial Statements Continrretl

16. Invertments in linancial assets

Movement of Equity Inveslments

e) Shereholding in other entities

a, lnvestment in'l'reasury bills and bonds
inancial institution
BK
ub^ tolal

t the of thet,lnt ear
rrrrhqca nf irrrr,,ct,r1A,it. ;'1 ilr-

le of investments durin the ear

in thir value of irrvestments tlrrouat Ioss sur lus or dcficit
t thc end of the r

h,l/o W Kshs Kshs lfsns
I A l-

ti tl
t-

nti c l-

26

2022-2023

s[r
t-2022.----.---:-.-_-}_.-

Grand totel

irKshs

lrv zozt-zozt

iKshs
t-

tln

ndirtcl

lv luc nDtr at
omr

I
bhar". hrr---T- sh res bha res

h
r
rcntI

,()a r
Effr'c'tive

ame
bere

hreholdi



Makueni Couny, Enterg4ncy Fund
Annual ll.eport and Finrrncial Statcments for lhe year cnded June 30, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Corrtinued)

I7. Prop.rty, plant and equipment

At J0th .l une 2022
At 30tr J une 2023

Al l'r Julv 2021

At Jo'h J une 2022
At I'r Julv 2022

Transfer.'Ad ustments

'l'ransl'err;/Ad
ust nlcnls

Irn rm -'nt

At l,tJu 2022
Dc recial ion

Inr rrm:nt
l'ransfer,'Ad ustmenl

De reciation And Irn a irnren t
At ls Jul 202t
De Airon

Additions
t)i I'

At 306 J une 2022

Dis 5

Net Boo x Values
At J0'h June 2023

Additions
Di S

At 30'b June 2023

27

l,
Mot.qtte,!
Kshs

I

-I
Furnir

$!i!c
Kshs

l-



Ma*ucnl County Emergency Fund
Annutl Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Notes lo the Financial Statements (Continued)

lE. Intargible assets

Cost

At ln ofThe Year
Additions

At End ofThe Year
Amortization And lm irnrenl

Arnort ization

At End ofThe Year
lntpairment l-c'ss

At End of 'l'hc Ycar
NBV

19. Investment Property

ilt loss in fhir value if fair value is elected

tn of thet r

odtltons

lheun

ation

Irn rment

t end the ear

28

I pY 202r-2022I FY 2022-202J

I

At Beginring of The Year

iFY 2021-2022

[*
I)escription IFY 2U2-2o23

t t

t
t- t-t r



Mahueni Counly Emergency Funt!
Annua! Reporl and Financiat Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notes to The Financiel Statements (Continued)

20. Trade and other pavables from exchanse transactions

t),,t.^,t,.Lt,. r-rl\!luIlu.l(,1!r,

Accrued Expenses

Total Trade and Othcr pa bles 23,076,905

21. l'rovisions

Cirarrgc i)uc tu i)isuuurri arrd 'i irrrc Vaiuc
For Money

Trade Payables 23,076.90s

Balance at the Beginning of the year
(t.07.2022)

--

- -

E-Erf

Provision Utilised

Transfcrs From Non -Current provisions

Balance at The End of the Year
(30.06.2023)

29

-t

Additional Provisions



Makucni County Entergency Fund
Annurl Report and Finsncial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Notes to The Financial Statements (Continued)

22. Borruwings

Balance At llcgrn nrn of Thc l'eriod

Repayments Of External
Pcri,rd

Borrowings f)uring the

Repayments Of Domestics Borrowings During thc
Period

Balance At End of Thc Period

Do Bo rrou'in

Et,,-......,:..

Total Balance at End ofThe Year

The tablc below shows the classification of borrowings long-tcrm and current borrouings

Lons, Term Borros ings

Extemal Borrorvings During the Year

the YearDomcstic Borrowin gs Duri

oan From 'X Organization'Dollar Denominated I-

Sterling Pound Denominated Loan l:rom 'Y

Euro Denorninated Loan from Z Or ization'

Kenya Shillin l.oan l;rom K(lll

o ization'

Kenya Shillin Loan from Barclays Bank

Kenya Shilling Loan from Consolidated Bank

Short Term Borrorvings (Current Portion)

Total

30

'l'he table below shows the classification of borrowings into external and domestic borrowings:

FY 2022-2023 | FY 2021-2022

Descriotion
FY 2022-2023 I FY 2021-2022

FY 202t-2022I t'Y 2022-2023



Makueni County Emergency Fund
Annual Report and Financiat statcments for the year ended June 30,2023
Notes to The Financial Statements (Continued)

23. Emploveo henefit ohligrlionr

Ks hs

at

Kshs

t- t- t_
I

24. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS
A prior period adjustment really applies to the correction ofan error in the financial
statemcnts c'f a orior oeriod

NB: This adjuslment relfltes lo Trode an Other payuble.

K.shs Kshs Kshs
llenefitCurrent

Obligation

t ron

Non-('urrent
Ilenel'it Obli

Adjustrnents on'['rade payable

23,076,905 (t7,622,071)
nsACtl.)ns

rade rnd ()ther I'ayables from Exchange 5,454,834

'l otu I 523,07 (17,622,,071) 5,454,834

3t

I

IFY 202Il2022 es

lper auditetl
lfinenoiql

f,tatemcots

)escription

L

shs

ln, cc b/t fromna

hs

ustnrcnts

uring thc
r relating

rlr!._rr

riods

ncc b/f from
'2021t2022

{djusted



Amortisatiorr

GainV Losses On Disposal Of Assets

14,538,235SurpluV (De{icit) For the Year l}eforc Tax

Adjusted For:

[)cpreciation

Interest lncome

Finance Cost

Working Capital Adjustmenls

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Increase ln Receivables

Increase In Payables 5.454.834

I,358,975

(s,4s4,834)

9,083,.101

Ms*ucni County Emergency Fund
Annuel Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,,2023

Notes to Thc Finnncinl St:rtpments (Continrrcd)

25. Crsh generated from operations

FY 2022-2023 F\',202t-2022

E
(4,095,trs9)

32



Mokueni Count.v Energe;rc), Fund
Annuul Rtport and Firur:cial Statenrcnls ,for the )'ear entled 3Uh June 2023

Notes to The Financial litatements (Continued)

26. Rclalrxl party balan,r'es

s) Nnlurc of related partv relationships

I..ntitics ard otltcr partics rclaled to thc F Lrnd include thot;e parties who hrve ability to exercise control or exercise signilicant influence ,rver its
opcrutinp and Iinancial d.'cisions. Rclate,.l partics include' management pcrsonnel. their associates and cli)se family members. The fund/icheme
is rclatcd to thc tirllorvint. cntitics:

a) 'l'hc lt,lakucni ('ounty Covemmcnt:
b) 'l'he I'arent County G.rvcrnment Ministry:
c) Key ntanagement;
d) Board of Trustees; ek:.

b) Relaled party trans:rctions

Transfers From Related Parties' 47.23:2.938

l'ransfers'l'o Related Parties

c) Key rnanagement rernuneration

Board C,f Trustees

Key Management ComF,ensation

Total

JJ

i FY 20;\2-2023 F'l l-2022

Kshs Kshs

ILr023-2qj
IGt s

lFl r-2022Description



Makueni County [..'mergencv Furut
Ar,nuol Report ant I Financial Stul(nrcnls .for the ycar ended 3Uh J,me 2023
Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued t

28. Financial risk managemcnt

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks and effects of changes in foreign cure ncy. TheFtrnd's overall risk managemenl programme foclrses on unpred ictab-ility of cha rges in the business environmcnt and seeks to minimise thepotential adverse effect ofsuch risks on its perfon.nance by setting, u...plur. lev.ls ofrisk. The I'und does not hedge any risks arrd has in placepolicies to ensure that credit is only extended to cr stomers rvith ar: established crclit history.

The Fund's financ ial risk manage,ent objectives and poricies are detaired berow;

'l'he [und has exp('sure to credit ri:;k. rvhich is the risk thal a counrerparty rvill be Lrnablc to pay an.,ounts in l'ull rvlen due. c]redit risk arises fromcal;h and cash eq 'rivalents' and tteposits rvith b:nks, as well irs trad'e and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.Mitnagement assesses the credit quaiity of each customer, taking into account irs linancial positiorr. past cxpcricnce and other factors. lndividualris< limits are set L'ased on interni or external assr:ssment in aciordance with limits scr by rhc dir.cit,rs. 'rhe amounts presented in the statementof financial positi.n are net of all,wances for dotrbtful receivabli's, estimated by. thc cntity's nunagcrre.l bascri on prior experience and theiras!essment of the ':urrent econom jc environment' The carrying arrounr of financial asscts rccord,:d in rhe linar*-ial slatemcnts rcpresenting theenlity's maximum exposure to cre(iit risk withour laking account of the value of arry collateral obtirinctl is rnadc up as fbllows:

a) Credit risk

At 30 June 2023

Reccivables Fron-, Exchan ge Trar sactions
Receivables Fron. Non-Exchan ge Transactions
B lnk Balances

T ctal

-III

At 30 .lune 2022

35

cription
Tr: tal amou nt

ll-s
lFrtty'1,"rfr.,ui,,g I 

ltast r rrc
I Kshs

lnr paired
Kr rs



Makueni Counry, Enrcrgtnc'1, Fund
Annual Report arul Financial Slatenents for lhe ys617 s1;ded 3Ah June 2123

d) Duc from rclated parties

Due From Parent Ministry

Due From County Covemment

Total

Total

e) Due t,r related partirs

Due To Parent Ministr_r'

Due To County Govemment

Due To Key Managem,:nt Personnel

27. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Court ('ase Against the F

Bank (iuarantees

lirtal

.: .l

Contlh lcnt Liabilities
FY 2022-202J

-rr
iI

I Kshs l, slr s

2912:J9?3

hs

I Fv t02t-2o22

l-tc'l'. 
-.-----.

I F', 2O22-2023I- __
Ix'trs

FY .t02t-202t

I KsIs



lvtakue n i Counh' l.nre rge nq, fyn6l
Annuul Report und Finunciul Stal,nrcnts for the yt ar ended 3Uh Jme 2023

Nctes to The Financial Statements (Continued)

Tt|e customers under the fully performing categor) are paying their debts as they co rtinue trading. 'l he credit risk associated with th,:se receivables
is rninimal and the allorvance for rrncollectible anr,runts that the ertity has recogni;ed in the finin< ial statements i:; considered adiquate to cover
an',' potcntially irrc coverable amo!nts.

The entity has sign ificant concentration of credit risk on amounts <lue frorn Makucni Emergency Iund.

The board of trustees sets the Furd's credit policies and objectives and lays dor,,n paramcters rr ithin rvhich the various aspect: o[ credit risk
menagement are ol)erated.

b) Liquidity risk management

Ul: imate responsibility for liquidit.r risk managem,:nt rests rvith th,: Fund Administrator, who has ,ruilt an appropriate liquidity ris < managemenr
framgwork for the rnanagement of rhe entity's shor1. medium and |rxg-term funding and liquidity rlanag"r.nr req .riremints. ihe t.nrity manages
liq ridity risk through continuous rnonitoring of forecasts and actur.l cish flows.

The table below represents cash flows payablc by the Fund undernon-derivative financial liabilities by their remaining contractuirl maturities at
the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the conr ractual undisco,rnted cash flou,s. dalances duc within l2 months egual their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 30 June 2023

T''ade Payablcs

Current Portion C,f Borrorvings

Provisions

E nployee Benefi' Obligation

3l

icriDtion I l,ess than th

ICsh.s

l-3
Over 5 monllrs

Kshs
J.otsl
Kshs



Makueni County Emerga ncy Fund
Annual Abport and Fina,rcial Statenent: for the year en,led 3Ah June 2(.t23

Receiva bles Frorn Excl ange Transactic,ns

Receivables From Non.Exchange Tran ;actions

Bank B,llances

Total

l6



lllakueni (louruy* Emergenq, Fund
Antual Report and. Financ ial St ate' nte ntsfor the ver ended 3Ah Jtne 2023

Notes to The Financial Statemenrs (Continued)

Tht: board has put in place an interrral audit functio n to assistit in assessing the risl faced by the entity on an ongoing basis. evaluate and test thedesign and effectiveness of its inrernal accounting and operational r:ontrolsl

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in marltet prices. such as interest rate, ,.'qui1y prices an,J foreign excharrge rates which will affect theent ity's income or the value of its holding of financiai inslrument:. the oujective of market risk rnanagement is ro managc and control marketrisl exposures within acceptable p rrameters, whilr: optimising the retum. overatt responsibility l'rr managing market risk rests rvith the Auditanc Risk Management Committee.

Thtr Fund's Financc Department is responsible for I te development of detailed risk rnanagement policies (subject to review and appr.val by Auditand Risk Management Committee) and for the dayto-day implemcntation oi,f,o." policies.

Tht:re has been no change to the entity's exposure 1o market risks or the manner in which it rnanagr:s and measures the risk.

i. Foreign currencv risk

Tht: entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purr:hases of goods and services that are done in curencies otherthan the local currcncy. lnvoices denominated in fcrreign iurrencies .r. puiJinir 30 days from the date of the invoice and conversion at the timeof payment is done using the preva ting exchange rrte.

Thc carrying amount of the entity's foreigr currency denominated monetary assets and monetary l:abilities at the cnd of the reporting period areas lbllows:

c) Market risk

Al 30 June 2022

Financial Assets

ln'restments

J9

scription

I xstrs



Makuent Countv Emergcncv F'uncl
Annwtl lleport and Firutncial Statcnent.; for the year ended 30h June 2023

'I'otal

5.454.834 5.454,834

Current Portion Of Borrowings

At 30.lune 2022

Trade ['ayables

Provisirlns

lrmploy ee Benefi t Obli gation

Total 5,,45,1,834 5,{5{.83{

.]8



Mckuenl ('ounty E.nergency Funt)
11.1yglRe port aru i F i nanc i al S tort,nentsfbr the 1,ear ended 3Ah Jt'ne 2023
Notes to The Financial Statemen ts (Continued)

Fo reign currency sensitivit"v analysis

F Y 2022-2023

Errro l0e'o

LSD t0%
F',Y 2021-2022

Errro t0%
LSD l0o/o

It Interest rate r isk

Munogemenl of inleresl rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, m agement has endeavoured to t,ank with institutions thar ofrer hvourable inter.est rates.

Th : following tabk: demonstrates the efrect on the irund s st1:T.1, of financ.ial pe'form.ancc on applying the sensir:ivit,v for a reasonable possiblechange in the exchange rate ofthe three main transaction currencies, rvith all oiher variables helo'consiant. The r,:verse would aiso occur iftheKenya Shilling ap;,reciated with ail other variables held constant.

Int'lrest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition ma5 be adversely afr-ected as arcsull ofchanges in interest rate levels. The entity.s
;lH:$::[ Hffil,'ff,nfl||'lr|if:'j:'Jl,!.*roses the Fundi,r cash flow interest rate risk. rhr: interesr rare risk exposure arisi,s mainry riom

4t

t

E ffect on surplus/ deti< it

I Kshs
il

eqrrity

IEfl:ct onI Chonge

J cltrrencv
rl

il

lption
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Makueni Counly Entergtncy Fund
Annual llegsrt and Fina,ncial State ,1sn1" for lhe year en.led 3Ah June 2(.123

Cash

Debtors, Receivables

Liabilities

Trade A nd Other Payables

Borrowings

Net Foreign Currency A sset/(Liability)

40

I



Mi.hrcni County' E nergenc.l. Fund
Anrual Report arut Financial Statcmenls for the 1,ear ended 3Ah Jyne 2023

29, Events after tle reporting period

Th:re were no marrial adjusting and non- adjusting events after rte reporting perird.

30. Ultimate and llolding Enriry

Th+ e-ntitv is a,county Public F'unrl established by the Makueni county Emergency Ac1,2015 which rvas gazetterl on 23d octob,:r.2015 underthc Ministry of Finance and socio-,:conomic plannrng. lts ultimate parent is thJcounty Governme.rt of Makueni.

31. Currency

Th,: financial statelnents are preser red in Kenya St illings (Kshs)
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Sensitivity anolysis

The Fund analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by'conducting a sensitivity analysis. Ihis involves dr:termining the impact on
profit or loss of defined rate shifu. The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in paticular foieign :xchange
rates, remain constant. The analysis has been perlormed on the same basis as the prior 1ear.

Using the end of the year figures. the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the statcment of comprelensive income if cugent floatirrg interest
rates increase/decrease [.'y one percentage point as a decrease/increase.

d) Capital risk management.

The objective ofthe Fund's capital risk management is to safeguard the Fund's abilitl,to continue as a going concern. the entity capital structure
compriscs of the lbllowing funds:

Accum rlated surpluV(deficit) 10.63r.2t3 (l1.529.0()3)

t 0,631,213 (21,529,0rrJ)

Total borrorvings

[-ess: c;rsh and bank ba ances

Net del,t/(excess cash irnd cash equival.:nts)

(Jcaring 0"/" 0'r(

Revalu:rtion reserve

Revolv'ng fund

J2

Total l'irnds

FY 2022-2021
I)escri ptiou

Kshs

1'lFY 202

Kshs rl
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20..,l.nnexes

Annex I : Progress on Follow Up of Prior Year Audit lr's Recommerrdations

The follr:rving is the summary of issues rrised by'the cxtr'rnal auditor. anrl rnsn6g6r.nt crmments that s :re provitled to the auditor. \!'e lrave nominated

focal pe:sons to rcsolvc 'he various issur:s as shorvn belr,rv rvith the asst:ciated tinre franre u'ithin which we expect the ir,sues to be resolved.

lJnexplained va'iances in comparative balance s in
the financial starement

I) The itatement of financial position for
the year under review, rel'ects
comt'arative balances for 20201i021
financial year in reslrcct of accumulated
deficit of Kshs. I 7,433,235 and Nil
balarce of Kshs. 37.920,478 and Kshs.
20,41',7,243 respecti\ely resulting irr un
exper:ted and unrecrtnciled varianc,: of
Kshs 20,487,243 for the two balanct:s.

ll) The r,tatement of cash flows for the year

unde ' review reflec s Nil Comparz tive
Balarrce for increase in trade and (:ther
payables from exchange transactions
whil< the audited ;,rior year finartcial
statetnents reflects a balance of the same
amor nt.

The
Managenrent
corrected the
Trial ba ance
to reflec the
corTect
position of
Trade and
other
pa1'ables.

Resolver I
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2

Obsen'ation

The validity and a:curacy of the above
compar ative balances in the state ment of
financi,rl position and tlle statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30tr lune2022 could not be
confimcd.

The statenrent of financial perfbrmance fo . thc year
ended 30 June, 2022 rellects transfers from the
County Gcvernment amornts of Kshs. 3(;,400,000
as discloscd at Note 2 to the financial sr rtements.
Hou'ever, lhe financial st rtements for th: County
Covemmerrt of Makueni ftr the year endet!30 June.
2022 rellects an amoun: of Kshs. 35.041,025,
resulting ir an unexplained and an unr:conciled
variance ol Kshs. 1,358,97t.

In the circumstances, the a( curacy and contpleteness
of the tre nsfers form tlre County Go yernment

amount of Kshs. 36,400,0r)0 for the year ended 30
June,20?2 could not be corfirmed.

The audit was conductrd in accordarrce with
lnternation ll Standards of Supremr. Audit
Institutions (lSSAIs). I rm independent of the
Makueni County Emergency Fund Management in
accordancc with ISSAI 130 Code of Ethiis. I have

sponsibilities in at cordance

The
management
con,:cted the
pne.'plained

variimce

Resolved

fulfilled ot rer ethical re
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with the ISSAI ,rnd in accordanoe with other elhical
'equirements alrplicable to pt rforming audits of
tlnancial statem,ints in Kenya. I celieve that the audit
,:vidence I h,rve obtained is sufficient and
,rppropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
,rpinion.

rregular expenrliture

- The statement of fin rncial pcrlorm ance
reflects use of goods and services amount
totalling Kshs. 40,495.ti59. Included in this
amounl s a payment of Kshs. 6,770,73t1 for
supply and installation of a water pumping
unit and a generator ser at Wote Water and
Sanitatir:,n Companl (WOWAS(l'O).
lJowever. WOWASCO is a separate entity
having -specific legislative authority, $.hose
objectivc and purpose i:; provision of water.
Water prrmping unit and generator set tt)rm a
major component in l)rovision of w ater,
therefort', the purchase of a water pumping
unit and a generator xt should have been
providec for in its budgt:t. This was con trary
to section 4 of the Makueni County
Emergerrcy Fund Act, 2025, which provides
that the ,lbject and purp,tse ofthe Fund is to

pect of theenable ayments to be n-ade in res

:6

Referc rcc No. on i lssue / Observ: tions from Aur litor
tltc c; tgrnal audit
Report

Manage,nenl Stirtus:

(Resolv, d / Not
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Cuunty rvhen an u'gent and unfore seen need
for expenditure ar ses for which rhere is no
spt:cifi c legislative authority.
ln the circumstan,ies, Management was in
bnach of the larv.

The audit rvas con,lucted in accorcance rvith
ISI;AI 4000. The srandard that I cornply rvith
ethical requiremerts and plan anrl perform
thc audit to obtain assurance aboLl whether
thc activities. firrancial transact ions and
inl'rrmation reflccted in the financial
statements are in compliance, in all material
respects, with the authorities thnt govem
them. I believe that the audit evidencel have
oblained is sufficient and appr()priate to
prcvide a basis for my conclusion

M;Lkueni County Emergency Fund Manager

Date I 3'h Decemb t:r. 2023
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Reference
Number

Annex ll: Inter-Fund tlonfirmation I etter

Makuenr County limergrncy Fund
P.O Box 78-90300 Makr.eni

1'he County Covernmenr of Makueni E.tecutive rvishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as ar 30th June 2023 as indicated in the table
below. Piease compare the amounts disb"rrsed to you rvith the amounts 1'ou received and populate the column E in the table below pleasc sign and
stamp this request in the space provided and return it to rrs.

Amounts Disbursed by the Counry Government of Makucni Amount Reccived by
the Makueni County
Emcrgcncy Fund
(KShs) as at .i0'h June

2023

Executive Kshs as a: 30tl'June 2023

Recurrent (A)

(l ti
r--1'2304CCD2N2 22,95.i.040.00 2 2.953,040.00 22,953,040.00
FT23I293DG4N 5.485.567.00 5 485.567.00 5.485.567.00

tJifu3s^oo 
-

F"r23 t672D6GC 6-JtLl-23 1.577.338.00 r 577,338.00
FT23 I68CD7M7 7-ltl-23 5.454.834.00 5 454.834.00 5.454,8.34.00 __

11.762,159.001r l 2i l9 t 8R903 l0-.tul-23 I 1,76:r, r59.00 I t,762,159.00
Total '!

17.232,9JIt.00
ln confi rm that the amoJnts shou'n abo're are correct as of the date indicated

Head ot'Accountants rlepartment of beneficiarv Fund:

Name ......Faith Musau........ Sign .. 'ji:i::::jjji:::i:r "......'....Date 13'lOcgg!]LLcl 2023

Der elopment
(B)

Ir,ter-
I,tinisterial

l'otal
(l))=(A+B+C)

Diff<:rences
(KSl,s)
(F)=tD-E)

Dat:
Dislrursed

9-F,:b-23
9-lr1a -23

-8

Confirr'ration of amounts received b', Makueni Cou nty Emergencr Fund as at 30" June 2023
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Annex V: Schedule

Rak rtm.
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Fn: B r5
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50000r20

50000121

Pl r llll O.!

]'MIA}iD PETROL STAI: \ Enr
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sERVrct STAnot.l Ua{ rtD [:nr Relief
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Use of (ioods and Servrces
Cash arrd Cash Equivalr:nts
Receivables

Trade a rd Other Payablcs
Transfc rs From the Cor ntv Covemmenl

!{or yery ldJ!!!mg!!s_ tPayables)
Accumrrlated Surplus

for the period
Total

32,694,703
10,631.212 1,547.81I

40.495 859
1,547.8r I

17,622.071

17,433.234
4.095.859

136.6{8

r88.836

23.076,905
i6,400,000

21,529,093\

38,1J6,648

5.454.834

t'l .622.071
2t 529,093
14.538.235

59,{ r l 961

47.232,938

10.631.212

59,41I,961

0

Mokueni Countl,
Makueni Coun4, Enterlency Fund
Annual ,Report and Filrancial Statemcnts for the year.cnded June 311,2023 _
Annex VI: Trial Belenr:c

B9rs4- I't
C rrrent Pcriod r FY 2022t231

Balance I Crcdit Bala
Periorl rry,'.1

Cre,lit Balapce
Kshs

lt

:t T

___f-_

t-I

-l

x
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Annex VII: Srcherlule for prior \ ear Adjustments

PAYEI.] VCH
:io. vo-I.E

Javkenr; Ilast Africa l,td l:N (x):]l-: Emergency'

Relief
Ilandir lnvcstments l.imired !'N00 1E

Iimergencl
Relief

I'ETAILS

F,eing paymcnr for rehabil itation ol Mulala markcr & Prin arr.-Ksa
t thuku mrk-\ r oad

eing payment for construction ol'FLI ) classrom trl<rck ard a store at
1. alaani Primarr school
Iieing supp
a ffccted by

l1' and dclircrl ol'food and roon food materials to familics
mudslidcs at Kaiti sub Courrt

ll.eing pal,ment for construction of Ikaangani drift

Ileing pal,ment for cunstruction of Isuuni Drift

l:

Kanini Kaseo Wholesalcr. Co
Limircrl l;N00 rrli

FN00:r u

Fn"00,l I:.

Emergency
Rt'lief
Emerge nc1-

Relief
limcrgcncl
Rclicf

.-i0-Jun-21 Dcmm,Limited

-10-Jun-21 Citilinl Solurions Limited

Prr:pared by: F:rith Musau liignature: ........fu..:....... I)ate: I 3th Decerrrber. 2023

I-6.->__
Coolirmedby:JohnNguni liignature:...t}k...

GOYEI].iMENT OI UAIUBNI COUNfi

CHIEF OFFICER
...... Darei ftff?r$rori

FIIIANCIAL S[ rtvtCES
P, 0. Bor 78'9o30o, }iAKUENI' I

I
l

3
;

D. \Ttl

i0-Jun-21

-i(lJun-21

J0-Jun-21

A I\IOT-INT

I .6{2.81 5

2.950.196

206.720

2.688.889

t0. 133.1 5 I

t7,622,07 t

5l


